
AGENDA PAPERS FOR
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING

Date: Tuesday, 6 January 2015

Time:  6.30 pm

Place:  Committee Room 2 and 3, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford 
M32 0TH

A G E N D A  PART I Pages 

1.1
 

1. ATTENDANCES  

To note attendances, including officers, and any apologies for absence.

2. 2. MINUTES  

To receive and if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 
of the meeting held on Tuesday 4th November, 2014. 1 - 6

3. 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. 4. ACTION LOG  

To receive an update from the Chief Clinical Officer, NHS Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 7 - 10

5. 5. BETTER CARE FUND UPDATE  

To receive a report from the Chief Operating Officer, NHS Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

To be 
tabled

6. 6. SAFEGUARDING NEEDS  

To receive an update from the Chief Operating Officer, NHS Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

To be 
tabled

Public Document Pack



Health and Wellbeing Board - Tuesday, 6 January 2015

7. 7. CO-COMMISSIONING  

To receive an update from the Chief Operating Officer, NHS Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

To be 
tabled

8. 8. SYSTEM REFORM INCLUDING DEVO MANC  

To receive an update from the Chief Operating Officer, NHS Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

To be 
tabled

9. 9. EARLY YEARS UPDATE  

To receive an update from the Director of Public Health. 11 - 14

10. 10. TRAFFORD SEXUAL HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT  

To receive an update from the Director of Public Health. 15 - 30

11. 11. PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT  

To receive an update from the Director of Public Health. 31 - 38

12. 12. PROVISIONAL HEALTH & WELLBEING MEETING DATES 2015/16  

To inform the Board of the provisional Health & Wellbeing meeting dates for 
2015/16. 39 - 40

13. 13. TRAFFORD CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP UPDATE  

To receive a report from the Chief Operating Officer NHS Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

To be 
tabled

14. 14. HEALTHWATCH TRAFFORD UPDATE  

To receive a report from the Chairman of HealthWatch.
To be 
tabled

15. 15. TRAFFORD PARTNERSHIP UPDATE  

To receive an update report from the Partnerships Officer. 41 - 64

16. 16. KEY MESSAGES  

To consider the key messages from the meeting.

17. 17. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)  

Any other item or items which by reason of special circumstances (to be 
specified) the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion should be considered 
at this meeting as a matter of urgency.

18. 18. EXCLUSION RESOLUTION (REMAINING ITEMS)  



Health and Wellbeing Board - Tuesday, 6 January 2015

Motion   (Which may be amended as Members think fit):

That the public be excluded from this meeting during consideration of the 
remaining items on the agenda, because of the likelihood of disclosure of 
“exempt information” which falls within one or more descriptive category or 
categories of the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, as amended by 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and 
specified on the agenda item or report relating to each such item respectively.

THERESA GRANT
Chief Executive

Membership of the Committee

Councillors Dr. N. Guest (Chairman), M. Young (Vice-Chairman), D. Banks, J. Bennett, 
D. Brownlee, M. Cornes, A. Day, B. Humphrey, G. Lawrence, Supt Liggett, A. Razzaq, 
A. Vegh, S. Webster, C. Yarwood and M. McCourt

Further Information
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact:

Ruth Worsley
Tel: 0161 912 2798
Email: ruth.worsley@trafford.gov.uk

This agenda was issued on Tuesday 23 December, 2014 by the Legal and Democratic 
Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford 
M32 0TH. 

mailto:ruth.worsley@trafford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

4 NOVEMBER 2014

PRESENT 

Cllr J. Bennett 
D. Brownlee
Cllr M. Cornes
A. Day
Dr. N. Guest
G. Lawrence
S. Webster
Cllr M. Young

Shadow Member for Adult Social Services & Community Wellbeing
Corporate Director of Children, Families and Wellbeing
Exec Member for Children’s Services
Chairman of Healthwatch Trafford
Chairman of the HWB, and Chief Clinical Officer of Trafford CCG
Chief Operating Officer of Trafford CCG
Director of Bluesci
Vice-Chairman of the HWB, and Exec Member for Adult Social
Services & Community Wellbeing

Also Present

C. Baker-
Longshaw
K. Calvin-
Thomas
J. Crossley
D. Eaton
G. Green

I. Khan
P. Whittaker

Joint Director for Children, Young People and Families (Health 
Care)
Executive Director of Planning, Performance and Information of 
Pennine Care NHS Trust, representing Michael McCourt
Associate Director of Commissioning of Trafford CCG
Joint Director for Adults (Social Care)
Director of Operations and Nursing for Greater Manchester West 
(Mental Health) NHS Trust
Service Transformation Project Manager of Trafford CCG
Consultant in Public Health, representing Abdual Razzaq

In attendance

R. Sheikh
R. Hughes

Partnership Officer
Democratic Services Officer

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from D. Banks, B. Humphrey, Supt Liggett, 
M. McCourt, A. Razzaq, A. Vegh, C. Yarwood and M. McCourt

17. MINUTES 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting held on 
Tuesday 15th September 2014 be approved as a correct record.

18. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No interests were declared.

19. ACTION LOG 

RESOLVED: That the contents of the Action Log be noted.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Health and Wellbeing Board 
4 November 2014

2

20. RESHAPING TRAFFORD 2015/16 - BUDGET PROPOSAL 

The Corporate Director for Children, Families and Wellbeing delivered a 
presentation which set out the Council’s plans for Reshaping Trafford and gave an 
overview of how the budget proposals for 2015/16 would affect the delivery of 
specific services within the Children, Families and Wellbeing directorate (CFW). 
The Board were informed that significant savings had been made since 2010 from 
restructuring, collaboration, and reviewing operational and service delivery across 
the Council, with CFW having contributed £38m of the £75m savings already 
achieved.

It was explained that further reductions to the Council’s central funding required 
additional savings of £57m by 2017/18, which would mean that the Council 
needed to significantly change the way services were delivered. It was envisaged 
that restructuring operations to deliver services less directly would enable a leaner 
version of the Council to continue to provide quality services and meet its 
minimum statutory obligations. The Board were guided through the savings that 
had been identified from the various budgets of the CFW directorate and the 
proposals for delivering these savings, and the process for consultation was 
outlined.

The Board were given an opportunity to raise questions in relation to the 
presentation, and the Corporate Director clarified the impact assessment process 
for managing the risks associated with reductions in each budget, which would be 
informed by the consultation process and would be fully accessible for Members.

RESOLVED: That the presentation be noted.

21. UPDATE ON HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION 

The Joint Director for Children, Young People and Families (Health Care) and the 
Joint Director for Adults (Social Care) introduced a presentation on the integration 
of health and social care services between Pennine Care NHS Trust and Trafford 
Council. A Service Delivery Model was outlined which was based on four 
geographic areas within Trafford, with North, West, South and Central district  
integrated neighbourhood teams anchored by a ‘One Door’ 24hr Central 
Assessment Service consisting of IV therapy, rapid response, an emergency duty 
team, urgent care, single point of access and hospital teams. 

The strategic approach across all sectors was said to ensure that all services were 
aligned without any duplication between partners. It was noted that the staff 
consultation had been completed, appointments had been made for both the Joint 
Heads of Service and Joint Operational Managers, and work was now being done 
to develop a New Working Model.

In response to questions from the Board it was confirmed that success will be 
measured against agreed outcomes shared by Pennine Care and the Clinical 
Commissioning Group, and would be recognisable by increased rates of patients 
deflected away from hospitals. It was noted that patients would be able to 
personally assess the quality of the services they receive through the Patient Care 

Page 2



Health and Wellbeing Board 
4 November 2014

3

Co-ordination Centre when it is launched in August 2015, which will provide advice 
and co-ordinate health care through a single point of access.

RESOLVED: That the presentation be noted.

22. BETTER CARE FUND UPDATE 

The Associate Director of Commissioning of the Trafford Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG), Julie Crossley, presented an update on the progress of the Better 
Care Fund initiative since a report had been presented to the Board at the 
previous meeting. The Better Care Fund plans had been submitted to NHS 
England on 19th September 2014, and were ‘approved with conditions’ specifying 
that the plans must further demonstrate how they will meet national conditions of 
protecting social care to ensure that people can still access the services they 
need, providing seven day health and care services, and meeting data sharing 
requirements. Although the fundamental approach was recognised as being 
suitable there were specific challenges that needed to be addressed before 
implementation, and the CCG and Trafford Council would not be able to 
commission new services until these conditions were met and full approval 
granted.

The Better Care Fund Steering Group had identified actions to mitigate risks and 
were developing an Action Plan for submission to NHS England by 14th November 
2014, with the intention of engaging stakeholders and providers to revise and re-
submit the Better Care Fund plans by 12th December 2014. It was planned that the 
scheme would then be implemented in April 2015.

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.

23. PRIMARY CARE 

The Chief Operating Officer of Trafford CCG gave an update of the recent work 
undertaken for the CCG to take back responsibility for some aspects of primary 
care commissioning. The CCG were said to be preparing the area teams to take 
back commissioning arrangements, but that for some aspects of commissioning 
this would not be possible until 1st April 2015. The Board would receive more 
specific information once the arrangements were fully in place.

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.

24. CCG ESTATE STRATEGY 

The Chief Operating Officer of Trafford CCG delivered a presentation which 
provided an update of recent developments with the CCG’s estate. The CCG’s 
Estates Group were said to have identified five Principles to underpin the 
development of the estate: integration, federation, community services, access 
and hard to reach groups. Plans were outlined for Community Integrated Centres 
including the Shrewsbury Street Village Project due to open in May 2017, and the 
Trafford Live Well Centre due to open in December 2016.

Page 3



Health and Wellbeing Board 
4 November 2014

4

The Board were invited to raise questions in relation to the presentation and a 
discussion followed concerning the out of hours service, the potential of the former 
Trafford General Hospital site, the character of the Trafford Live Well Centre and 
how it will be occupied, the utilisation of the Partington site, opportunities for 
developments in Sale and the restrictions on the development of the old 
Altrincham Hospital site.

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.

25. CCG UPDATE 

The Chairman gave an overview of the recent activity of the CCG. In addition to 
the information already covered at the meeting, the Board were updated in respect 
to the CCG’s Operational and Resilience plan and the recently established North 
West Commissioning Support Unit, and received an update on the progress made 
under the Transformation Programme.

In response to questions from the Board, the Chief Operating Officer of the CCG 
clarified that the recent closure of a ward at Trafford General Hospital was a 
standard hospital efficiency procedure, and that wards can be quickly re-opened in 
response to clinical demand.

The Chairman also explained that recent problems with identifying patients 
requiring winter flu inoculation had been recognised and that Dr Kath Sutton, the 
lead on the inoculation programme, had put measures in place to address the 
problem and ensure that all eligible patients were contacted. A briefing note had 
been prepared, setting out how the issue was being addressed, which the 
Consultant in Public Health, Dr Paula Whittaker, agreed to send on to Councillor 
Joanne Bennett.

RESOLVED: 

1) That the update be noted; and

2) That the winter flu inoculation briefing note be sent to Councillor Joanne 
Bennett.

26. HEALTHWATCH UPDATE 

The Chair of Healthwatch Trafford introduced a report which gave an update of the 
organisation’s activity since the Board’s last meeting.

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.

27. TRAFFORD PARTNERSHIP UPDATE 

The Chairman referred the Board to the information report submitted by the 
Council’s Partnerships and Communities Team, which gave an update of the 
Trafford Partnership’s work in the last quarter.

RESOLVED: That the information report be noted.

Page 4



Health and Wellbeing Board 
4 November 2014

5

28. KEY MESSAGES 

The Chairman notified the Board that there had been a very positive response to 
the Healthier Together consultation in Trafford, with the third highest number of 
responses across Greater Manchester.

29. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY) 

The Chairman took the opportunity to draw the Board’s attention to an upcoming 
event, What does ‘Good’ Look like in Health and Wellbeing? Examples of success 
in Health and Wellbeing Boards from across the Region and Beyond, which would 
be held at Wigan Investment Centre on 20th November 2014. It was agreed that 
an information flyer would be circulated to members of the Board, who were 
invited to register their interest.

The meeting commenced at 6.30pm and finished at 8.50pm.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



HWB Action Log 4th November 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health & Well Being Board 
Date: 06th January 2015
Report for: Information
Report of: Dr Nigel Guest, Chair of Health and Wellbeing Board 

Report Title

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log 4th November  2014

Purpose

The Action Log provides an update on the actions from the last Health and 
Wellbeing Board meeting on 4th November 2014
 

Recommendations

That the Health and Well Being notes progress against the actions

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Robina Sheikh, Communities Officer  x1361

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



HWB Action Log 4th November 

Item 
no.

Title Relevance  to the Board 
(please select):
1. JSNA ( Understand and use 

health and wellbeing needs, 
inequalities, risks and 
assets locally )

2. JHWS (priorities for local 
action)

3. Integration and Partnership
4. Governance, Accountability 

and Assurance

What action 
required from 
Board         
(please select)
Endorsement
Decision
Approval / 
assurance
Discussion
Information

Presentation 
 Or Paper

Preparing Presenting Time 
required

Outcomes / 
Actions from 
Meeting

1 Action Log Information Paper Robina 
Sheikh Nigel Guest 5 mins  Accepted by 

Board

2

Reshaping 
Trafford 
2015/16 
Budget 

Proposal

4 Information Presentation Deborah
Brownlee

Deborah
Brownlee 20 mins Update noted

3

Update on 
Health & 

Social Care 
Integration

4 Information Presentation Deborah
Brownlee

Deborah 
Brownlee 20 mins Update noted

4 Better Care 
Fund Update 3 Information Paper Gina 

Lawrence
Gina 

Lawrence 20 Update noted

5
NHS England 

on Primary 
Care

4 Information Paper Claire 
Yarwood

Claire 
Yarwood 15 mins Update noted

6 CCG Estate 
Strategy 4 Information Presentation Gina 

Lawrence
Gina 

Lawrence 15 mins Update noted

7 CCG Update 3/4 Information Paper
Nigel
Guest Nigel

Guest 15 mins

Update noted. 
Paula Whittaker to 

send Cllr J. 
Bennett the briefing 

note prepared in 
relation to winter flu 

P
age 8



HWB Action Log 4th November 

Board meeting dates 2014/15 

Tue 3rd March (20th February deadline for papers and presentations)

Workshop dates 2014/15 

 Tue 3rd Feb  - Mental Health/ Good Governance/Social Media 
 Tues 7th Apr – to be confirmed

inoculations

8 HealthWatch 4 Information Paper Ann 
Day

Ann 
Day 10 mins Update noted

9
Trafford 

Partnership 
update

3/4 Information Paper Robina 
Sheikh

Robina 
Sheikh 5 mins Update noted

10 Urgent 
Business Nigel Guest

“What does ‘Good’ 
look like in Health 

and Wellbeing” 
Event 20/11/14. 

Partnerships 
Officer to circulate 
event information. 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health & Well Being Board 
Date: 6th January 2015
Report for: Information
Report of: Abdul Razzaq, DPH

Report Title

Early Years - Transfer of 0-5 commissioning responsibilities

Purpose

To update the Health & Well Being Board on the planned transfer of 0-5 
commissioning responsibilities from NHS England to Trafford Council in October 
2015. 

 

Recommendations

The Board is asked to note the contents of the report.

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Jill Colbert Phone 07760 167 
532

Page 11

Agenda Item 9



Page 12



1. Guidance has now been received on the contracting and commissioning of services for 0-5 
year olds in 2015/16, which will transfer to local councils in October 2015. The central principle 
is that safe and effective services must be available across the period of transition. Securing 
new contracting arrangements for 2015/16 in advance of April 2015 will enable NHS service 
providers to plan properly for the provision of this service once it becomes part of local
government, ensuring a safe and effective transfer.

2.Services for 0-5 year olds are principally made up of health visiting services and family nurse 
practitioners. These services transferred to the NHS England local area team in April 2013. 
Since that time the services have been tasked with delivering a significant expansion in health
visitor numbers as part of a national initiative. The value of services commissioned in Greater 
Manchester in 2015/16 is expected to be around £49m.

3.Health visitor and family nurse practitioner services are therefore currently commissioned on a 
national basis by NHSE from a national service specification. This is a significant change from 
previous years, which saw a variety of different approaches from different PCTs and great
variation in investment between local areas as a result. Much progress has been made since
April 2013 to secure a common contracting framework and a common price tariff.

4. The draft Health Visiting service specification, for 2015/16, is heavily based on the early years 
work piloted within Greater Manchester, which has been partially implemented in Trafford in the 
South locality, to be further rolled out in the North locality in April 2015 as part of the Go Faster 
Go Further work on the new delivery model.

5. The services that transfer across will be referred to as ‘mandated’. This is similar
to a range of other public health services defined within the Health and Social Care Act 2013.
It means that local authorities will be required to commission those services as a
‘mandated public health step’. LAs will be able to determine how local health needs are to be 
met, but the overall framework will remain the Healthy Child Programme and the National 
Service Specification for Health Visiting.

It is expected that LAs will work towards delivering 100% of the mandated services, including 5 
key checks:
i. Antenatal health promoting visits;
ii. New baby review;
iii. 6-8 week assessment.
iv. 1 year assessment
v. 2-2½ review.

The Trafford Health Visiting service, provided by Pennine NHSFT, achieves between 93-98% on 
these indicators, with the exception of (i) which they cannot achieve timescales for currently due 
to poor performance by midwifery providers on ante-natal notification information sharing.

6. A successful transition for these services will be characterised by a smooth change in 
commissioning responsibilities with no break in service coverage or scope. It will safeguard the 
existing improvements already achieved and secure further advantages that can be used to 
drive further improvements in the future. A key starting point is agreement of contracts for 
2015/16.

Page 13



2

7. Planning for the transfer was started some months ago and has been undertaken by the 0-5 
services Transition Board chaired by Steven Pleasant. The board includes representatives from 
Councils (legal, finance, public health and children’s services are represented) as well
as NHSE GM Area Team. Representatives from Public Health England and Health Education 
England have also been involved.

8. The proposed joint intention from NHSE and Trafford Council, is that, in the period from 
December 2014 to February 2015, the contracting team from NHS England, working closely with 
Trafford Council, will update the  existing contract for 2015/16, applying the National Variation to 
contract terms (to be published by NHS England in December 2015). At the same time, it is 
proposed to agree a deed of novation, to be approved by all three parties, so that rights and 
responsibilities under the contract will transfer from NHS England to the Council with effect from 
1 October 2015.

9. The intention is that the contract variation will be signed, and the deed of novation approved, 
by the end of February 2015, thus giving the provider full clarity before the start of the year about 
funding and expected service levels for the full year. Trafford Council is leading a range of 
meetings with Pennine NHSFT and internal colleagues to ensure due diligence is undertaking 
prior to transfer which includes agreeing the financial value, the contract terms, and any local 
amendments to the national specification.

10. The timeline for final agreement is late February, when contracts will be ready for sign off, 
and statutory responsibilities will transfer from 1st October 2015.

Page 14



Reshaping Trafford Council Sian Davies

Trafford Sexual Health Needs Assessment

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 10



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Definition

‘a state of physical, emotional, mental and social well-

being in relation to sexuality; it is not merely the absence

of disease, dysfunction or infirmity. Sexual health

requires a positive and respectful approach to sexuality

and sexual relationships, as well as the possibility of

having pleasurable and safe sexual experiences, free of

coercion, discrimination and violence. For sexual health

to be attained and maintained, the sexual rights of all

persons must be respected, protected and fulfilled.”

(WHO, 2006)

P
age 16



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Responsibilities

• 2013 Local Authorities mandated to provide sexual 

health services through the transfer of Public 

Health

• Local Authorities, Clinical Commissioning Groups 

and NHS England

P
age 17



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF)

Three indicators specific to sexual health, highlighting 

the need to continue and sustain efforts in these 

areas: 

• Chlamydia diagnostic rate in 15 – 24 year olds 

• People presenting with HIV at a late stage of 

infection 

• Under 18 conceptions 

P
age 18



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Sexually Transmitted Infections 2013

Source data PHE, 2014 Trafford North West England 

Syphilis diagnosis rate/100,000 3.5 4.3 5.9

Gonorrhoea diagnosis rate/100,000 52.1 40.6 52.9

Chlamydia diagnosis rate/ 100,000 in 15-24 y 1769 2217 2016

Chlamydia proportion aged 15-24 y screened 20.9 25.7 24.9

Genital warts diagnosis rate/100,000 134.8 141.3 133.4

Genital herpes diagnosis rate/ 100,000 63 58.9 58.8

HIV testing uptake, MSM (%) 91.4 92.4 94.8

HIV late diagnosis (%) 53.5 48.6 45

HIV diagnosed prevalence rate/1000 aged 15-59 1.9 1.64 2.14

Population vaccination coverage-HPV 91.9 90 86.1

Pelvic inflammatory disease admissions rate / 100,000 219.7 257.1 228.3

Cervical cancer registrations rate/ 100,000 5 10.9 8.8

P
age 19



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

National Chlamydia Screening Programme

• The NCSP recommends that all areas aim for at 

least 2,400 chlamydia diagnoses per 100,000 

people aged 15-24 years.  

• 2012 Trafford screened 1,926 per 100,000. young 

people, this is the second lowest rate in Greater 

Manchester.  

P
age 20



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Chlamydia

P
age 21



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

• HIV testing uptake in MSM in Trafford dropped in 2010, 
it has started to rise, but it is amongst the three GM 
areas with the lowest rates. 

• HIV testing uptake in women in Trafford is amongst the 
four lowest rates in GM 

• In order to increase the uptake of HIV screening in all 
groups in Trafford we have dedicated outreach work and 
new opportunities for testing 

P
age 22



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

HIV

P
age 23



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Teenage Pregnancy

• There has been a steady decrease in teenage 

conceptions in Trafford since 1998. 

• Trafford has seen a further reduction in teenage 

conceptions from 22.2 per 1000 women aged 15 –

17 in Q1 2012 to 13.6 in the same quarter in 2013

• This is the lowest rate in GM and translates to 14 

conceptions in that quarter

P
age 24



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Commissioned Services

P
age 25



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Service provision

• Integrated sexual and reproductive health services

• Dedicated services for young people

• Outreach clinics

• Targeted HIV prevention services

• Additional contracted services

• Joint working across agencies

P
age 26



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Funding

• Sexual health funding approximately 30% of the 

Public Health Budget

• Services are provided on an open access basis

• National tariff for GUM services but not 

contraception

P
age 27



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Sexual health funding breakdown 2014

Provider Service Value Arrangement Contract 

Bridgewater Integrated Sexual Health 

Service 

£1,524454 TMBC Contract Expires 31/3/16

Bridgewater Specialist Young Persons 

Service

£87,795 TMBC Contract Expires 31/3/16

RUClear Chlamydia Testing £112,000 GM Contract Expires 31st March 2015

GP Chlamydia screening/ 

treatment, LARC

£59,,000 TMBC Contract 1 year contract 1st April 

14 – 31st March

Pharmacy Chlamydia screening/ 

treatment, EHC

£47,000 TMBC Contract 1 year contract 1st April 

14 – 31st March

LGF HIV Prevention (MSM) £24,000

£40,000

GM Contract

TMBC

Expires 31/3/16

George House Trust

HIV Prevention (partners 

of HIV positive) £27,000

£45,000

GM Contract

TMBC 

Expires 31/3/16

Black Health Agency

HIV Prevention (BME 

Backgrounds) 

Support for Asian women

£8,000

£10,000

GM Contract

TMBC Contract

Expires 31/3/16

Annual Contract

MASH

Female Sex Workers £2,186 GM Arrangement

S.H.O.T.

Young persons service £47,000 TMBC Arrangement

UHSM N/A £250,000* Not Contracted

P
age 28



Sexual Health Needs Assessment 2014

Sian Davies

Recommendations

• Increase the numbers of young people tested for chlamydia

• Increase the numbers of Trafford residents tested for HIV

• Continue to develop a partnership approach to address 

sexual health and public health issues

• Better consideration of how high out of borough access 

charges can be mitigated, e.g. UHSM

• Develop a systematic approach to data collection to enable 

robust future commissioning decisions to be made

• Develop a better understanding of vulnerable groups such as 

female sex workers, those affected by domestic abuse to 

determine sexual health needs

• Develop and refine specifications where contracts are split 

across Trafford and Greater Manchester, e.g. LGF and GHT

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health & Wellbeing Board 
Date: 6th January 2015
Report for: Information
Report of: Mr Abdul Razzaq 

Report Title

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) – Supplementary Statement – 31st 
October 2014

Purpose

The purpose of the report is to update the Health and Well Being Board on the 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) – Supplementary Statement – 31st 
October 2014. 

Recommendations

The Health and Well Being Board is asked to note the Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessment (PNA) – Supplementary Statement – 31st October 2014. 

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Mr Abdul Razzaq, Director of Public Health  Phone: x1319 

Page 31

Agenda Item 11



2

                                     

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) – Supplementary Statement – 31st October 
2014

Trafford Council 
Trafford Town Hall
Talbot Road
Stretford
Manchester
M32 0TH 

The following items have been identified (in bold) as need corrections, clarification, service provision 
or premise details update. This updated information supersedes some of the original information within 
the PNA v1.0 as indicated, and should be read in conjunction with that document and the 
supplementary statement issued on the 1st April 2014.

ADDITIONAL PHARMACIES 

None

ADDITIONAL DISTANCE SELLING PHARMACIES 

Empire Pharmacy, 122 Seymour Grove, Old Trafford, M16 0FF
Tel: 0161 258 6149
Monday: 8am to 11:30am 
Tuesday: 7am to 10pm
Wednesday: 8am to 11am
Thursday: 7am to 10pm
Friday: 8am to 10am
Saturday: 9am to 10:30am
Sunday: CLOSED

Ward: LONGFORD
Services provided: Smoking Cessation 

With the addition of the above distance selling pharmacy, and the changes in the supplementary 
statement issued in 1st April 2014, there are now 63 community pharmacies, one distance selling 
pharmacy and one appliance contractor in Trafford. 

Date Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Published – 1st April 2014

Date this Supplementary Statement issued – 31st October 2014

Page 32



3

This should be noted when referring to the following sections/pages in the PNA v1.0:

Section Page
Section 3.2.1 7
Section 6.1 40
Section 6.2 40
Section 6.4.2 46
Section 6.5 Table 10 51
Appendix 8 -

PHARMACIES WHICH HAVE CLOSED 

None

CHANGES TO PHARMACY OPENING HOURS 

The opening hours of the additional pharmacy Elliot Pharmacy were previously excluded from the 
supplementary statement issued on 1st April 2014 in error. The opening hours of Elliot Pharmacy are 
as follows:

Monday: 7am to 10:30pm  
Tuesday: 7am to 10:30pm
Wednesday: 7am to 10:30pm
Thursday: 7am to 10:30pm
Friday: 7am to 11pm
Saturday: 7am to 11pm
Sunday: 11am to 6pm

CHANGES TO PHARMACY LOCATION

None 

CHANGES TO LOCALLY COMMISSIONED SERVICES

There have been a number of changes to locally commissioned services since the PNA was published 
on the 1st April 2014. An updated version of appendix 6 has been issued. See appendix 6 v2.0 
attached. 

UPDATED MAP OF PHARMACY LOCATIONS

Due to the addition of a pharmacy an updated version of map 6: one mile boundary – pharmacies in 
Trafford (section 6.4.6 – page 49) has been issued. See attached.

Page 33



4

Appendix 6 - Locally Commissioned Services v 2.0

Services commissioned by the Local 
Authority (LA)

Services commissioned by the CCG

CT – Chlamydia Testing PC – Palliative Care
EC – Emergency Hormonal Contraception MA – Minor Ailments
SC – Smoking Cessation HL – Head Lice
SM – Supervised Methadone/Buprenorphine
NE – Needle Exchange

North

LA CCGPharmacy Name/Address Postcode CT EC SC SM NE PC MA HL
Asda Pharmacy

Asda Superstore, Barton 
Dock Road

M41 7ZA Y Y Y Y

Boots
69-72 The Mall, Stretford 

Arndale
M32 9BD Y Y Y Y Y Y

Boots
10 Peel Avenue M17 8BD Y Y Y

Brooks Bar Pharmacy
162 -164 Chorlton Road M16 7WW Y Y Y Y

C&T Associates
77 Great Stone Road M32 8GR Y Y Y Y

Elliot Pharmacy
60 Seymour Grove M16 0LN

Empire Pharmacy
122 Seymour Grove M16 0FF Y

G Pennant Roberts
137 Ayres Road M16 9WR Y Y Y

Gorse Hill Pharmacy
874 Chester Road M32 0PA Y Y

Lloyds Pharmacy
The Delamere Centre, 

Delamere Avenue
M32 0DF Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Lostock Pharmacy
431 Barton Road M32 9PA Y Y Y Y Y

Rowland Pharmacy
6 Lime Grove M16 0WL Y Y Y Y

Tesco Instore Pharmacy
Chester Road M32 0RW

The Co-operative Pharmacy
92 Mitford Street M32 8AQ Y Y Y Y

The Co-operative Pharmacy
65 Ayres Road M16 9NH Y Y

The Co-operative Pharmacy
201 Upper Chorlton Road M16 0BH Y Y

Page 34



5

Central

LA CCGPharmacy Name/Address Postcode CT EC SC SM NE PC MA HL
Boots

2 The Mall M33 7XZ Y Y Y Y

Cohens Chemist
Firsway Health Centre, 121 

Firsway
M33 4BR Y Y Y Y

Hollowood Chemist
69 Washway Road M33 7SS Y Y Y Y

John Hugall
143 Northenden Road M33 3HF Y Y Y

Mai's Pharmacy Ltd
10 North Parade, 

Derbyshire Road South
M33 3JS Y Y

Rowland Pharmacy
54 Coppice Avenue M33 4WB Y Y Y

Rowland Pharmacy
331 Norris Road M33 2UP Y Y Y Y Y

Rowland Pharmacy
16 Plymouth Road M33 5JD Y Y Y

Sainsbury's Pharmacy
Sainbury’s Superstore, 

Curzon Road
M33 7SA Y Y Y Y Y

Tesco - The Pharmacy
Hereford Street M33 7XN Y Y

The Co-operative Pharmacy
2 Eastway M33 4DX Y

Village Pharmacy
23 Green Lane M33 6PF Y Y Y

South

LA CCGPharmacy Name/Address Postcode CT EC SC SM NE PC MA HL
Barry Bladon

219 Ashley Road WA15 9SZ Y Y Y

Boots
1 Stamford Quarter WA14 1RJ Y Y Y

Boots
Unit 8B, Altrincham Retail 

Park
WA14 5GR Y Y Y Y Y Y

Bowdon Pharmacy
6 Vale View WA14 3BD Y

Broadheath Pharmacy
70 Manchester Road WA14 4PJ Y Y

Page 35



6

Broomwood Pharmacy
63 Briarfield Road WA15 7DD Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Cohens Chemist
177 Ashley Road WA15 9SD Y Y

Hale Barns Pharmacy
311-313 Hale Road WA15 8SS

Helgason Pharmacy
8 Ashley Road WA14 2DW Y Y Y

Lloyds Pharmacy
321 Hale Road WA15 8SS

Lloyds Pharmacy
186 Grove Lane WA15 8PU

Oldfield Pharmacy
128 Seamons Road WA14 4LJ Y Y

Pelican Pharmacy
344 Manchester Road WA14 5NH Y

Riddings Pharmacy
38 Riddings Road WA15 6BP Y

Rowlands Pharmacy
Lloyd House WA14 2DD Y

Sainsbury's Pharmacy
Lloyd Street WA14 2SU Y Y Y

Vittoria Healthcare Ltd. 
Station Pharmacy

102 Park Road
WA15 6TE

Terry's Chemist
28 Sinderland Road WA14 5ET Y

Tesco Pharmacy
Tesco Superstore Manor 

Road
WA15 9QT Y Y Y Y

The Co-operative Pharmacy
238 Stockport Road WA15 7UN Y Y Y

Timperley Pharmacy
250 Stockport Road WA15 7UN Y

West 

LA CCGPharmacy Name/Address Postcode CT EC SC SM NE PC MA HL
Boots

Unit 4, Eden Square 
Shopping Centre

M41 0TT Y Y Y

Boots
Unit 8A, Trafford Retail 

Park, Neary Way
M41 7FN Y Y Y

Boots
179 Canterbury Road M41 0SE Y Y

Conran Late Night 
Pharmacy

175 Moorside Road
M41 5SJ

Page 36



7

Davey Chemists
14a Warburton Lane M31 4WJ Y Y Y Y

Lloyds Pharmacy
3 Crofts Bank Road M41 0TZ Y

Lloyds Pharmacy
Davyhulme Medical Centre, 

130 Broadway
M41 7WJ Y

Malcolm's Pharmacy
28 Flixton Road M41 5AA Y Y Y Y Y

Reeds Pharmacy
182 Church Road M41 9FD Y Y Y

Sainsburys Pharmacy
Unit 24, Eden Square 

Shopping Centre
M41 0NA Y

The Co-operative Pharmacy
2 Station Bridge, Station 

Road
M41 9SB Y Y Y Y Y

The Co-operative Pharmacy
475 Moorside Road M41 8TW Y Y

The Co-operative Pharmacy
10 Woodsend Circle M41 8GY Y Y Y

The Co-operative Pharmacy
Partington Health Centre, 

91 Central Road
M31 4FY Y Y Y

Urmston Pharmacy
287B Stretford Road M41 9NU Y

 

Page 37



8

P
age 38



TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health & Well Being Board 
Date: 6th January 2015
Report for: Information
Report of: Dr Nigel Guest, Chair of Health and Wellbeing Board
Report Title

Provisional HWB Meeting Dates 2015/16

Purpose

To inform the Board of the Provisional HWB Meeting Dates for 2015/16

 

Recommendations

For the Board Members to make a note of the dates which will be confirmed as soon 
as Democratic Services publish the Meeting Calendar 

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Robina Sheikh, Communities Officer x1361

Page 39

Agenda Item 12



2

HWB Provisional Dates for Meeting    2015 -16

2015 Papers/reports submission dates
30th June Friday 19th June
15th September Friday 4th September
03rd November Friday 23rd October

2016
05th January Friday 18th December
08th March Friday 19th February

HWB Development Workshop Provisional Dates 2015 -16

2015
06th October 
01st December

2016
02nd February
05th April  

Page 40



TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health & Well Being Board 
Date: 6th January 2015
Report for: Information
Report of: Adrian Bates, Partnerships Manager, Trafford Council

Report Title

Trafford Partnership Annual Report 2014

Purpose

To update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the work of Trafford Partnership 
during 2014

 

Recommendations

That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the progress made

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Robina Sheikh, Communities Officer Phone x1361

Page 41

Agenda Item 15



P
age 42



Health and Wellbeing Board 5th February 2014 Action Log Updated 24th March 2014

Agenda 
number

Agenda Item Action Lead Timescale Comments

4 GREATER 
MANCHESTER 
POLICE 
REPRESENTATION 
ON TRAFFORD 
HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING 
BOARD

Police membership to 
be ratified by full Council

Abdul  
Razzaq

1st April 
2014

To be ratified by Council on 26th March 
2014. 

6 TRAFFORD 
HEALTH 
ECONOMY 
PLANNING

CCG to recruit third 
sector and residents to 
their Patient Reference 
Advisory Board

Paul 
Hulme

1st April 
2014

Progress has been a little slow due to the 
ill health of our Lay Member for Patient 
engagement who is going to Chair the 
Panel and who is key to the recruitment. 
A short listing meeting is scheduled for 
Monday following which we will invite 
people to an open session where they 
will learn more about the role and 
expectations. We want a mind-set of self-
selection as much as on ourselves 
removing people form the process. 
Interest has been good and I want to 
maintain the interest with those people 
who decide that a panel is not 
necessarily for them. I have targeted the 
Panel to be up and running by the end of 
March and we should be on track for that. 

Hub and Patient 
Coordination Centre to 
be presented with 
patient scenarios to the 
next HWB 

Gina 
Lawrence

1st April 
2014

On agenda 1.4.147 BETTER CARE 
FUND (BCF)

Salford to be to be 
included in governance 
discussions on BCF via 
the ICRB

Julie 
Crossley

1st March 
2014

P
age 43



2

Strong evidence base, 
backed by academic 
research, collated to 
evidence the cost and 
social benefits of the 
Hub
Final version of the BCF 
plan to be submitted to 
HWBB for approval

Julie 
Crossley

Deborah 
Brownlee 
and Gina 
Lawrence

1st April 
2014

1st April 
2014

On agenda 1.4.14

Stream lined Action 
Plan and 
progress/performance 
update to be produced 
by 1/4/14

Linda 
Harper

1st April 
2014

The Action Plan is fully populated re 
Objective 1. The meeting scheduled with 
the Delivery Board in a couple of weeks’ 
time will focus on the remainder of the 
Objectives within the Action Plan based 
on co-production across partner 
organisations. All actions within the plan 
itself remain on target. Partners are 
energised and motivated to deliver the 
work. On agenda 1.4.14

8 TRAFFORD 
HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING 
STRATEGY 
ACTION PLAN 
UPDATE

Action Plan to be made 
accessible on 
InfoTrafford

Adrian 
Bates 

1st April 
2014

The strategy is available on InfoTrafford, 
and once the action plan is completed 
this can be also piut on the site. 
http://www.infotrafford.org.uk/hwbstrategy 

Revised version of the 
PNA to be circulated

Abdul 
Razzaq

7th 
February 
2014

Final PNA circulated to HWBB by AB 
06.02.2014. 

Map of pharmacies (or 
link to InfoTrafford) to be 
circulated

Abdul 
Razzaq

7th 
February 
2014

Map of pharmacies circulated to HWBB 
with final PNA on 06.02.2014. 

Enhanced services 
mapping to be circulated

Abdul 
Razzaq

7th 
February 
2014

Enhanced services mapping circulated to 
HWBB with final PNA on 06.02.2014.

10 PHARMACEUTICAL 
NEEDS 
ASSESSMENT 
CONSULTATION 
FEEDBACK

Comments to be sent to 
Abdul Razzaq

All 
members

14th 
February 
2014

No comments received by AR by the 
deadline date 14.02.2014. 

P
age 44

http://www.infotrafford.org.uk/hwbstrategy


3

Report to be circulated 
to HWB outlining how 
the needs assessment 
is translated into 
commissioning plans

Warren 
Heppolette 
/ Rob 
Bellingham

1st March 
2014

Briefing circulated 27th February 

Comments collated and 
incorporated into 
consultation prior to 
presentation at the next 
HWB 

Abdul 
Razzaq

1st April 
2014

No comments received by AR from 
HWBB. 
On agenda 1.4.14 

Healthier Together 
presented to next HWB

Nigel 
Guest

1st April 
2014

On agenda 1.4.14

Mental Health proposals 
to be presented to the 
next HWB 

Gina 
Lawrence / 
Bev 
Humphries

1st April 
2014

On agenda 1.4.14

11 TRAFFORD 
CLINICAL 
COMMISSIONING 
GROUP UPDATE

Hospital performance 
press release to be 
circulated 

Gina 
Lawrence

7th 
February 
2014

Awaiting update from CCG 
communications

14 KEY MESSAGES Key messages to be 
communicated across 
all organisations and 
networks

All 
members

7th 
February 
2014

15 ANY OTHER 
BUSINESS

Mental Health to be a 
discussion topic at a 
future  HWB 
Development Session

Abdul 
Razzaq

4th March 
2014

Deferred to next Development Session 
(to be arranged – May?)

Provisional Board meeting dates 2014/15 (agenda send out in brackets)

 Tuesday 1st July (23rd June)
 Tuesday 2nd September (25th August)
 Tuesday 4th November (27th October)
 Tuesday 6th January (22nd December)
 Tuesday 3rd March (23rd February)

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Trafford Partnership Annual Report  
2013/2014

www.traffordpartnership.org
Page 47



“The Trafford Partnership is Trafford’s Local 

Strategic Partnership, a single body which 

brings together organisations from across 

the public, private, voluntary, faith and 

community sectors and local residents. 

Members of the Trafford Partnership work 

together to achieve a common vision to 

ensure:

Trafford is a place where our residents achieve 

their aspirations, and our communities are 

thriving.”

Councillor Sean Anstee,

Leader of Trafford Council and

Chair of the Trafford Partnership

3 Welcome From the Chair

4 Highlights 2013/14

5 Trafford Vision 

6 Trafford Partnership Community Strategy

7 Who We Are

8 Trafford Partnership Executive

9 Trafford Partnership Conference 2014

12 Locality Partnerships

14 Strong Communities

16 Strong Economy

18 Safety and Reassurance

20 Brighter Futures

22 Better Homes

24 Positive Environmental Impact

26 Health & Improved Quality of Life for All

28 Increased sport and physical activity

30 Armed Forces Covenants

31 How to Get Involved

Contents

1 2

P
age 48



Welcome to the Trafford Partnership Annual Report 2013/14
It gives me great pleasure and pride to write this as the new Chair of the Trafford Partnership, 
working alongside my chair group of Rev. Roger Sutton and Matthew Gardiner. As we saw from 
last year’s national award, Trafford Partnership is a flagship partnership, one that delivers and 
enables great things to happen, and it is a privilege to be a part of it. 

As well as showcasing some of the work of the Trafford Partnership, we hope that we can inspire 
you to work in partnership with others, and that you will engage, empower and support local 
residents in delivering our vision for Trafford. As you will see, we have refreshed our vision and 
Community Strategy to reflect changes in our environment, economy and community. We 
wanted to focus more on individuals and communities, ensuring we make Trafford a great place 
for everyone: a place where our residents achieve their aspirations and our communities are thriving.

We also wanted to reflect the successes that we have had, and we should not be afraid to do this. 
Trafford is the safest place in Greater Manchester, its schools and education are excellent; we have 
a strong economy and excellent parks and countryside. We have great assets, great people, and 
great communities, let’s build on these. As a partnership, we are continuing to achieve positive 
outcomes. We are working more creatively, doing things differently; collaborating, co-locating, 
co-producing – in a nutshell doing things better together. 

Whilst we are improving services and achieving efficiencies, we must continue to drive forward 
positive change. We know the economic and social challenges we are facing as individuals, 
communities, organisations and as a borough. Public sector austerity, an ageing population - 
there is a reality here which we all have to respond to. We need to do more, and do more with local 
people. We must continue to encourage all sectors to not only work together, but work with local 
residents, enabling everyone to take action and improve their community. We need to expand our 
strong partnership culture to include localities, communities, families and individuals, translating 
strategic thinking into partnership action, at every level. 

From their launch at last year’s conference, our Locality Partnerships are steadily establishing 
themselves, bridging the gap between strategic partners and residents and communities. We are 
committed to working more closely with local people, and see the Locality Partnerships as a place 
where local people can influence decisions and develop innovative action in partnership with 
others. 

Thank you for your commitment, effort and dedication to Trafford. We are all part of ‘our Trafford’, 
and we all have something to contribute to improve the lives of our residents and strengthen our 
communities. We want to work with you to continue to achieve great things. 

Councillor Sean Anstee

Leader of Trafford Council and Chair of the Trafford Partnership

3

Welcome from the Chair

Thrive Trafford
Thrive Trafford, our third 
sector infrastructure 
support service, completed 
a very successful first 
year, supporting over 200 
local groups, attracting 
over £400,000 of external 
investment and delivering 
improved community grant 
events. 

Safest place 
Trafford is still the safest place 
in Greater Manchester, with 
the lowest crime rate and 
highest public satisfaction 
and confidence rates. 

Educational 
excellence
At least 90% of Trafford’s 
pupils receive a good or 
outstanding standard of 
education for both primary 
and secondary schools and 
Trafford is the only authority 
outside of London to feature 
in the top 30 for both primary 
and secondary schools.

Locality 
Partnerships 
Trafford’s new Locality 
Partnerships started work on 
a range of local issues specific 
to their area, including 
reducing child obesity, 
reducing isolation, improving 
access to green space and 

promoting community 
learning. Sale Partnership 
hosted Spring into Sale, a 
family fun day in Sale town 
centre which celebrated Sale 
as a great place to live, work 
& visit.

Trafford Assist
Trafford Assist, a partnership 
of the Council, Citizens Advice 
Bureau, Trafford Housing Trust 
and others, was launched 
to provide crisis support to 
residents. To date there has 
been over 3,800 applications 
processed, with 75% of 
applicants successful. 

Get ready for 
winter
Trafford’s partners 
coordinated their winter 
messages into a single 
newsletter, which was 
distributed to community 
venues across the borough. 
The newsletter also promoted 
the Warm Homes Healthy 
People project, which 
supported elderly and 
vulnerable residents with 
heating, benefit and health 
and wellbeing advice.

Supporting young 
people
Young People entered an 
Activity Agreement, where 
one-to-one support was 

provided with training and 
skills, alongside work with the 
family and carers to reduce 
the risk of homelessness. 
The project has been 
very successful. 85% of 
participants have moved into 
education, employment and 
training, and homelessness 
has been reduced. 

Tackling poverty
A Poverty Response Team has 
quickly expanded to over 40 
voluntary, community, faith 
and statutory organisations. 
They have explored issues 
such as access to finance, 
food poverty and child 
poverty, with some positive 
results, such as the funding 
of Manchester Credit Union 
in Partington by Greater 
Manchester Police. 

Trafford is 40
On 1st April 1974 Trafford 
Metropolitan Borough was 
formed, which created 
Trafford as a single place. 
We are celebrating this 40th 
year anniversary with a 
programme of events and 
activities that will celebrate 
everything that is great about 
Trafford, including the Big 
Trafford Lunch, a day of street 
parties across Trafford on 1st 
June, and the search for the 
40 Faces of Trafford.

4

Highlights 2013/14

P
age 49



The Trafford Partnership Community Strategy and Vision 2021 set out what we want Trafford to 
be like in 2021, by working together with organisations and communities.

The first Community Strategy was written following wide-scale community consultation in 2007. 
The areas you saw as the biggest priorities for Trafford are captured in our Key Objectives, each 
of which contains a set of priority outcomes. These were refreshed three years ago, and in 2014 
we have carried out a further refresh of the Community Strategy, its vision and outcomes, to 
ensure the Partnership retains its focus on achieving improved outcomes over the next seven 
years. We also want to reflect changes in our environment, economy and community and our 
accomplishments since 2007. 

The new vision and priorities have been developed in consultation within the Trafford 
Partnership, including the Strong Communities Partnership and the Diverse Communities Board, 
both of which have community representation on them.

5

Trafford Vision

To achieve the vision, our Community Strategy sets out key objectives and priority outcomes, 
which are being delivered by our Thematic and Locality Partnerships. 

Strong communities
Partners and people will work effectively together to improve outcomes for individuals, families, 
communities and localities.

Strong economy
Trafford will have a high performing economy and be recognised as a centre of business and 
investment growth in Greater Manchester.

Safety & reassurance
Trafford will be the safest place in Greater Manchester, and have the highest level of public
confidence and satisfaction in the action we take to tackle Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour.

Brighter futures
Trafford will be a place where all children and young people feel safe from harm, feel physically 
and emotionally healthy and access to outstanding education and personal development 
opportunities, preparing them well for adult life.

Better homes
Trafford’s residents will have access to appropriate housing in safe, secure neighbourhoods, 
improving their quality of life.

Positive environmental impact
Trafford will be cleaner, greener and more sustainable.

Health & improved quality of life for all
Public health is everyone’s business. We will reduce health inequalities through working with 
communities and residents to improve opportunities for adults and children

Increased sport and physical activity
Trafford will have the most active population in Greater Manchester and sport and physical 
activity will contribute to the reduction of health inequalities.

6

Trafford Partnership Community Strategy 

By working together:

• Trafford’s residents will have equal 
opportunity to be healthy, safe and 
prosperous, with fair access to housing, 
education, jobs in a flourishing, clean, green 
and sustainable local community. 

• Trafford’s communities will take positive 
action to improve their local area and 
support those living amongst them in 
vulnerable situations, in partnership with 
services and businesses. 

• Trafford’s businesses will have the skills, 
investment environment and infrastructure 
to achieve their ambitions and be successful. 

• Trafford will be a place people enjoy, with 
excellent cultural, sporting and heritage 
attractions and vibrant town, shopping and 
entertainment centres.

The Trafford Partnership will:

• See residents, communities, businesses and 
organisations as equal partners.

• Bring people together to achieve things we 
cannot do alone.

• Share power with local people, and add 
value to their local activity.

• Align strategic priorities with local 
communities to deliver joint action.

• Provide the tools and support to local people 
to take action.

• Share information, skills and resources and 
collaborate with partners and people.

• Be creative, dynamic, supportive and 
challenging in order to achieve our shared 
ambitions.

Vision 2021
Trafford is a place where our residents achieve their aspirations, and our 

communities are thriving

P
age 50



The Trafford Partnership structure has been designed to enable effective engagement with 
residents and the community, whilst delivering the activity required to achieve our Vision 2021, 
and the Key Objectives and Priority Outcomes set out in the Community Strategy. 

Each Thematic Partnership brings together appropriate public, private and third sector 
representatives. The Chair of each Thematic Partnership sits on the Executive, and a 
representative of the thematic sits on the Strong Communities Partnership Board. 

The Locality Partnerships are made up of statutory partners, local Councillors and Community 
Ambassadors. The Chair Teams of these partnerships also sit on the Strong Communities 
Partnership Board, enabling a clear line of communication between Executive, Thematic and 
Locality, through to local communities and residents.

Who we are

Trafford Partnership Executive

Strong Communities Partnership

Work together Communicate & celebrateListen & engage

Old Trafford & Stretford Urmston & Partington Sale South Trafford

Third Sector Diverse CommunitiesLocality Partnerships

Safer
Trafford

Economic 
Growth

Strategic
Housing Enviroment Health

& Wellbeing
Children’s 

Trust
Strategic Sport

& Physical Acivity

The Trafford Partnership Executive is chaired by Councillor Sean Anstee, Leader of Trafford 
Council, supported by Reverend Roger Sutton, Chair of Strong Communities Partnership, and 
Matthew Gardiner, Chief Executive of Trafford Housing Trust. The Executive brings together the 
Thematic Chairs, alongside a business and community representative and the Council Executive 
Member for Communities  and Partnerships. 

Members of the Trafford Partnership Executive

Member Position

Councillor Sean Anstee Leader of Trafford Council and Chair of the Trafford Partnership

Rev. Roger Sutton Chair of the Strong Communities Partnership

Matthew Gardiner
Chief Executive of Trafford Housing Trust and Chair of the Strategic Housing 
Partnershipic Housing Partnership

Neil Smith
Chief Executive of the Kinetic Group and Trafford Partnership Private Sector 
Representative

Ralph Rudden
Chair of the Sale West and Ashton Partnership and Trafford Partnership 
Community Representative

Sir Bill Moorcroft Principal of Trafford College and Chair of the Children’s Trust Board

Chris Fletcher
Deputy Chief Executive of Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce and 
Chair of the Trafford Economic Alliance

Mary Doyle
Chief Superintendent of Greater Manchester Police and Joint-Chair of the 
Safer Trafford Partnership

Theresa Grant
Chief Executive of Trafford Council and Joint-Chair of the Safer Trafford 
Partnership

Mike Savage
Operations Manager of Red Rose Forest and Chair of the Environment 
Partnership

Andy Worthington Chair of the Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership

Dr Nigel Guest
Chief Clinical Officer of Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group and Chair of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board

Bernie Jones Chief Executive of Trafford Community Leisure Trust

Councillor John Lamb Council Executive Member for Communities  and Partnerships 

7 8

P
age 51



Trafford Partnership’s annual conference 
welcomed 200 voluntary, community, faith, 
private and public sector delegates to the 
LifeCentre in Sale on April 9th. Cllr Sean Anstee 
delivered the Chair’s opening address, stating 
his pride in joining the Partnership Executive 
and taking a lead role in a strong, successful 
and dynamic partnership. He stressed the need 
for us to all celebrate and take pride in Trafford, 
and highlighted the Trafford is 40 programme 
of activities as a great way for us to showcase 
our strengths and bring communities together 
(for more information visit www.trafford.gov.
uk/traffordis40). He also outlined his support 
for locality partnerships, recognising the need 
for the Trafford Partnership to do more to 
engage with local communities, with locality 
partnerships as a place to do this. 

The next item saw Rev Roger Sutton take to 
the stage alongside members of the Chair 
Teams from the four locality partnerships; Cllr 
Lisa Cooke (Urmston & Partington), Cllr Mike 
Cordingley (Old Trafford & Stretford), Cllr John 
Lamb (Sale) and Jonathan Francis, Trafford 
Leisure Trust (South Trafford). Roger asked 
them about the Locality Partnerships in an 
informative question and answer session. 

The conference was then handed over to 
our guest speaker Cormac Russell. Cormac is 
Managing Director of Nurture Development 
and a faculty member of the Asset Based 
Community Development (ABCD) Institute 
at Northwestern University, Chicago. He 
has trained communities, agencies and 
governments in ABCD and other strengths 
based approaches around the world. For more 
information on Cormac visit his website www.
nurturedevelopment.org. 

Cormac delivered a fantastic set of talks, 
workshops and activities throughout the day. 
You can view films of the day on our website. 

Cormac closed the conference by highlighting 
the role of Community Builders, brokering 
relationships and connecting people at street 
level and Community Connectors, local, unpaid 
people who naturally and fluidly build relations, 
host conversations and value relations. They 
find hidden, informal associations who come 
together by consent not control, those who 
come together not for grant funding, but 
because they want to. 

With them we can build up ‘association of 
associations’, where ideas can be shared, as 
this creates change. Resources are necessary, 
but the community need to set the outcomes. 
“You can measure the sustainability of a 
project by the number of citizen fingerprints 
that are on it”. The Association of Associations 
concept is being taken forward by our Locality 
Partnerships. 

Finally, Cormac posed three questions for 
delegates to take forward:

• What could we do in 10 years using 
community power?

• If community power alone is not sufficient, 
what help do we need from agencies?

• What’s left for the agencies to do? 

There are a number of information sheets on 
our website which will support you through the 
concepts, challenges and opportunities Cormac 
walked us through www.traffordpartnership.
org/aboutus/partnershipevent.asp. 

Finally, special thanks go to Trafford Community 
Leisure Trust for hosting the lunchtime health 
walk and lifestyle checks, and the post-lunch 
group activity that got everyone clapping and 
laughing, and thanks also to the LifeCentre 
for again delivering a highly professional 
conference venue. 

Trafford Partnership Conference 2014

9 10

P
age 52



Old Trafford & Stretford

1. Gorse Hill

2. Longford

3. Stretford

4. Clifford

Urmston & Partington

1. Bucklow St Martins (Partington)

2. Davyhulme East

3. Davyhulme West

4. Flixton

5. Urmston

Trafford has established Locality Partnerships, made up of Councillors, partners including 
the police, health services and council, and Community Ambassadors. There are four Locality 
Partnerships that will comprise of the following areas:

The purpose of Locality Partnerships is to:

• Increase resident and community 
involvement in local democracy, priority 
setting and decision making, increasing 
service responsiveness and accountability.

• Increase co-production between 
communities and organisations.

• Increase volunteering, social cohesion, 
community capacity and resilience.

• Increase engagement with residents and 
communities.

They will do this by:

• Enabling the community to contribute to 
the solution to key challenges, ensuring 
improvements are more sustainable and 
more effective, whilst influencing public 
sector services to redeploy resources more 
effectively.

• Brokering relationships between strategic 
partner organisations and local residents 
and communities, utilising more effective 
methods of engagement.

Since being launched in April 2013, the 
four Locality Partnerships have met six 
times. Overall, the four partnerships are well 
attended, with a good atmosphere, balanced 
views and a drive to take action and make a 
positive impact. Each partnership has a Chair 
Team, made up of a Councillor, Community 
Ambassador and Statutory Partner, who 
attend the Strong Communities Partnership, 
ensuring a link between the strategic 
partnership and localities. 

Each partnership has considered statistical 
information and local intelligence and agreed 
a number of priority areas, shaping their work 
plan: 

• Sale - maximising the economic and health 
benefits of Sale Town Centre. This includes 
engagement events in the town centre in 
November 2013 and the highly successful 
Spring into Sale event in March 2014. It 

is also beginning an innovative Stronger 
Families pilot project, to develop local 
sustainability into this strategic priority. 
The Partnership has successfully applied 
for funding from Our Place to support this 
project. 

• South Trafford – isolation of older people. The 
Partnership has successfully bid for funding 
from Our Place to develop this project, which 
brings together a range of partners to work 
innovatively to tackle this key local issue. It 
has also led improvements to the Voluntary 
Sector Grants scheme. 

• Urmston and Partington – tackling obesity 
in children and families, and employment 
and skills. Three working groups have 
been established, to increase take up of 
Community Learning, explore new ways 
to increase physical activity in target 
hard-to-engage groups and increase use 
of greenspace such as the Mersey Valley 
(supported by a successful £19,000 funding 
bid from Urmston Community Panel for 
improvement works).

• Old Trafford and Stretford – child obesity and 
healthy eating, and education attainment 
and youth employment. The initial focus 
has been on making Community Learning 
more accessible to specific areas of Stretford, 
and exploring the role School Governors 
can take in promoting healthy eating. Links 
are being established with Trafford Park 
and the Trafford Pledge to focus discussions 
on youth employment. Also, the medical 
offer at the forthcoming Shrewsbury 
Street development is being discussed and 
influenced with the developers to help local 
people.

In addition, the Locality Partnerships have 
led the Council’s 2014 Voluntary Sector 
Grants process, to allocate £120,000 through 
participatory budgeting. The events are being 
used by Locality Partnerships to increase their 
engagement with the community. 

Locality Partnerships
Locality Partnerships
Working together with you

Urmston
&

Partington

Old Trafford
& Stretford

South
Trafford

Sale

1

4

3
2

5

2
3

1

6

7

5
4

2 1

3

5 4

1

3

2

4

South Trafford 

1. Altrincham

2. Bowdon

3. Broadheath

4. Hale Barns

5. Hale Central

6. Timperley

7. Village

Sale

1. Priory

2. Ashton upon Mersey

3. Brooklands

4. Sale Moor

5. St Marys

Bucklow St Martins (Sale)

11 12

P
age 53



The Strong Communities Partnership is the 
lead partnership on the delivery of Strong 
Communities in Trafford.

Our vision

Partners and people will work effectively 
together to improve outcomes for individuals, 
families, communities and localities.

What we achieved in 2013/14

• The Strong Communities Partnership led 
the refresh of the Vision 2021 Community 
Strategy, bringing together representatives 
from all thematic partnerships, locality 
partnerships, lead organisations and the 
Diverse Communities Board to ensure the 
new vision and objectives will drive better 
partnership working and improvements in 
our communities over the coming years. 

• The Locality Partnerships led the Council’s 
Voluntary Sector Grants scheme in 2013, 
holding five community grant voting events 
across the borough, where local people 
voted on which projects should receive 
funding. Record numbers attended these 
fantastic events, with many new groups 
receiving grants totalling £160,000. The 
events were run by Thrive Trafford. 

• Thrive Trafford delivered a hugely successful 
first year of their three year contract. Starting 
with a survey of local groups to understand 
what was needed, they worked with over 
200 groups, building capacity and attracting 
funding, and brought in local businesses 
to help groups and increase employee 
volunteering. Year 2 has continued to deliver 
ahead of target, with increased focus on 
increasing volunteering, inward investment, 
quality and diversity within the sector.

• Trafford’s Welfare Reform Group brings 
together housing providers, Welfare Rights, 
Housing Benefit, Department for Work and 
Pensions, Citizens Advice Trafford and a 
range of other employment and wellbeing 
advisors to work together collaboratively to 
minimise the impact of Welfare Reform, and 
support residents into work. It has delivered 
a project that enabled residents affected by 
under-occupation to move house.

• As part of a wider project to tackle Hate 
Crime working alongside the Safer Trafford 
Partnership, the Diverse Communities Board 
led the Council’s Advancing Equalities Grant 
Scheme, allocating and monitoring £40,000 
of grants to community groups to improve 
access and quality of hate crime reporting. 
These projects were showcased at a launch 
event in November. 

Our focus for 2014/15

• Locality Partnerships to support community 
action by bridging the gap between local 
people and the strategic partnership.

• Support Thrive and third sector partners to 
deliver the Third Sector Strategy.

• Ensure effective use of Voluntary Sector 
Grants through the Diverse Communities 
Board and Locality Partnerships.

• Ensure all partners play an active and 
coordinated role in the Stronger Families 
Initiative.

• Lead the Trafford Partnership’s response 
to Poverty and Welfare Reform in Trafford, 
minimising the impact on individuals and 
building resilience in communities.

13

Project showcase: Stronger Families 

The Stronger Families approach promotes a 
different approach to working with families 
in order to help them to change or turn their 
lives around:

• By working with the whole family in a way 
which recognises they interact and influence 
each other rather than viewing them as 
individuals with problems;

• Using a dedicated worker if dedicated team 
to get to the underlying problems, rather 
than containing and monitoring their 
problem;

• By developing a relationship with the family, 
being persistent and building trust with 
them in order to challenge them to make the 
changes they needs, step by step, rather than 
containing and monitoring their problems;

• And, where necessary drawing in specialist 
services in sequenced way at the right time 
for the family rather than services being 

available on a basis of meeting thresholds 
and availability.

To date we have 332 families identified for help 
and being worked with in the programme, 
from which 257 families have achieved an 
outcome. For example:

• Offending – 147 families were identified 
under the offending category and 
throughout the process. We have seen a 67% 
reduction in the number of recorded crime 
incidents to date.

• Persistent absence – 92 families were 
identified under persistent absence and to 
date we have seen a 76% improvement in 
this area.

• Families progressing to work or in work – 285 
families were identified on benefits and since 
then we have seen a 15% improvement on 
the number of individuals either on a work 
programme or actually engaged in full time 
employment.

Stronger: Strong Communities

14

P
age 54



The Trafford Economic Growth Board is the 
lead partnership on the delivery of a Strong 
Trafford Economy.

Our vision 

Trafford is a high performing economy and is 
be recognised as a key centre of business and 
investment growth in Greater Manchester.

What we have achieved in 2013/14

• The Stretford Masterplan was produced 
that sets out a comprehensive vision for 
the town centre, identified areas for future 
development and set out key actions 
required to deliver growth, produced 
following public consultation in Summer 
2013. A detailed Public Realm and Movement 
Strategy will now be commissioned to 
identify specific town centre environmental 
improvement. A feasibility and delivery 
strategy will also be completed to progress 
the proposed redevelopment of the Lacy 
Street site. 

• A range of initiatives have been implemented 
over the last 18 months to engage 
businesses. An account management 
service has been enacted for all business 
enquiries to ensure a single point of contact 
and effective referrals/follow up, and some 
253 enquiries have been handled, covering 
Business Start-ups, Business Support and 
Inward Investment. A Business Relationship 
programme was launched to develop closer 
working relationships with businesses 
through face to face meetings, with 35 local 
companies visited (eg. Unilever, Apadmi, 
Pozzoni, Think Money).

• The ‘Trafford – First For Business’ brand 
(including ‘Trafford – First for Investment’) 
was established, alongside a suite of Inward 
Investment marketing brochures, including 

Trafford – First for Investment, Trafford – First 
for Manufacturing, Trafford – First for Digital 
& Creative, and Trafford Park Brochure. 
Brochures are used by both Trafford Council 
and MIDAS to promote the borough to 
potential inward investors.

• Trafford continues to play a key role in 
the procurement and delivery of the GM 
Broadband Programme, Get Digital Faster. Of 
the eight local authorities involved (which 
are each contributing equal funds to the 
programme), and independent economic 
survey identifies that Trafford stands to make 
approximately 45% of the total economic 
benefit generated by the programme. 

Our focus for 2014/15

• Supporting the development of new-starts 
and the growth of existing businesses.

• Attracting inward investment, businesses and 
jobs.

• Creating the right physical environment to 
generate business and residential growth, 
targeting major strategic sites including 
Trafford Park and Carrington. 

• Supporting the development of a highly 
skilled and competitive workforce.   

• Ensuring all residents are supported to fully 
access the workplace.

• Regenerating the main towns as places 
where residents and business can thrive.

Project showcase: Partington Pledge

Partington Pledge was launched on 30th April 
as a joint initiative with DWP to match the 85 
young unemployed people in Partington with 
local employers who committed to offering 
employment support to the young people 
through offering; jobs, apprenticeships, work 

15

Stronger: Strong Economy experience, mentoring support or practical 
help. Major employers have signed the Pledge, 
including SAICA, Manchester United, Alstom, 
Duro Fuelguera, Premier Inn, and Carrington 
Business Park. 

The pilot period was from 1st May 2013 to 31st 
October 2013, and the outcomes were:

• A total of 38 Partington residents were 
supported into employment through the 
initiative.

• 41 young people received employability 
skills support through additional provision 
delivered by the initiative.

• 18 businesses have now signed up to the 
Partington Pledge. 

• Seven young people were matched with 
business mentors to support them to find 
employment.

• Cost benefit analysis shows that for every 
£9,540 invested this project saved over 
£120,000 in Government spending across 
the same period.

This collaborative project was very successful 
and it is intended to roll-out the Pledge 
borough-wide in July 2014.

16

P
age 55



The Safer Trafford Partnership is the lead 
partnership on the delivery of Safety and 
Reassurance in Trafford. 

Our vision 

Trafford will be an exceptionally safe place to 
live, where crime continually reduces and fear 
of crime is not a constraint to daily life and 
investment. Trafford will continue to be the 
safest area to live in Greater Manchester.

What we achieved in 2013/14

• Trafford remains the safest place in Greater 
Manchester.

• Trafford has the lowest level of Anti-Social 
Behaviour (ASB) in Greater Manchester (32 
incidents per 1,000 residents, compared to 47 
in Salford and Stockport, and a force average 
of 69 per 1,000 residents).

• Altrincham Town Centre was one of the most 
improved areas in terms of crime, which is 
overall down by 28%.

• Between 2007/8 and the end of 2012/13, 
crime in Trafford more than halved and ASB 
Incidents reduced by over 60%.

Project showcase: Operation Bank

This multi-agency initiative, using legislation 
provided by the Proceeds of Crime Act and 
actively involving Trafford Council (Trading 
Standards, Environmental Health), GMP, HMRC, 
and the Benefits agency, focuses on the 
illicit activity of those in the community who 
consider themselves to be untouchable by the 
criminal law, exploiting members of the local 
community and using their illicit income to 
fund serious criminal activity.

In a recent example of this scheme in action 
fourteen people were arrested in February 2014 
in a series of drug and firearms warrants across 
Greater Manchester. The raids, which were 

carried out at twelve addresses and a yacht 
in south Manchester, Trafford, and Cheshire 
recovered firearms, cannabis farms and a large 
amount of cash in excess of £100,000.

Firearms recovered include a loaded machine 
gun, a sawn off shot gun, a hand gun and 
ammunition. Cannabis factories were also 
found at five of the addresses as well as Class 
A drugs. Approximately 100 officers supported 
financial investigators and neighbourhood 
officers on the raids in properties in 
Broadheath, Timperley, Hale, Mere, Baguley and 
Wythenshawe. 

Detective Inspector Frank Morris who was 
coordinating the operation said: “This is an 
excellent result and these arrests are part of an 
on-going investigation into the criminal activity 
of members of an organised crime group. 
The operation has been made possible due 
to the excellent partnership activity between 
Operation Bank, the Trafford Council Benefit 
Fraud Investigators and the Department of 
Works and Pensions Investigation team”.

17

Safer: Safety and Reassurance

18

Our focus and change for 2014/15

The focus for the Safer Trafford 
Partnership is clear. It is to ensure that 
Trafford’s position as the safest place 
in Greater Manchester is retained and 
to uphold the perception that the 
Police and Council are dealing with 
the issues that matter the most to the 
public.

A new operational structure has 
been adopted by the partnership 
to clarify and enhance the linkages 
between the Safer Trafford meetings, 
other thematic partnerships, 
locality partnerships, and the wider 
Greater Manchester and Police 
Crime Commissioner governance. It 
promotes an enhanced focus on a 
smaller number of agreed priorities, 
directly related to the Safer Trafford 
Partnership Crime Strategy.

P
age 56



The Children’s Trust Board is the lead 
partnership on the delivery of the Children 
and Young People’s Strategy 2011-14.

Our vision

Trafford will be a place where all children 
and young people feel safe from harm, feel 
physically and emotionally healthy and access 
to outstanding education and personal 
development opportunities, preparing them 
well for adult life.

What we achieved in 2013/14

Health and Well-Being

•  The Breast Feeding rate at 6-8 weeks was 
54.4% compared to 36% the previous year 
and reflects the works done through the 
peer support service to support women to 
both initiate and continue breast feeding. 
Extra support and training has been 
targeted towards lower achieving areas and 
rates, particularly in the West Area, have 
significantly improved

•  The locality approach to reducing childhood 
obesity project (LARCO) has funded a 
number of community groups to encourage 
primary school age children to eat healthily 
and to be physically active

Closing the gap for vulnerable groups

•  The attainment of pupils eligible to receive 
free school meals achieving 5+ A*-C grades 
rose to 47% narrowing the gap between 
these pupils and their peers

•  Trafford is a Pathfinder for the single 
Education, Health and Care plan for children 
with special educational needs and disability

•  Multi-Systemic Therapy for children at risk 
of custody or entering care has had a 93% 
success rate in helping young people stay 
with their family

Closing the gap for localities

•  The Family Information Service (FIS) achieved 
the Families First Quality Award. Trafford 
FIS provides access to a bank of valuable 
information relating to all aspects of family 
life and receives over 60,000 hits per month.

•  The number of active Common Assessment 
Frameworks for children living in the 
most deprived areas (65.5%), significantly 
increased as a proportion of the total 
number from 2012/13 (47.4%).

Achieving Educational Excellence

•  88% of Trafford schools are rated as ‘Good’ 
or better by OFSTED compared to 66% 
nationally

•  49% of Trafford schools are rated 
‘Outstanding’ compared to 22% nationally 

•  The number of 11 year olds achieving Level 
4+ in English and Maths was the second 
highest in the country

Preparing for Adulthood

•  Trafford has the lowest proportion of 16-
18 year olds who are not in employment, 
education or training (4.1%) in Greater 
Manchester

•  70.3% of pupils attained 5+ A*-C Grades at 
GCSE compared to the national average of 
60%

•  Performance at Key Stage 5 bucked the 
national trend for reductions in top grade 
passes with; A* Grades up from 10.% to 
12.1%, A*-A grades up from 34.8% to 40.5% 
and A*-B grades up from 64.3% to 60.6%

19

Brighter: Brighter Futures Safeguarding

•  The provision of long term stable placements 
for children in care provides the foundation 
on which children can grow and achieve 
positive outcomes. The out turn figures for 
2013/14 maintained an exceptional level of 
performance 4th highest in the country

The Children’s Trust Board recently signed 
off the Children and Young People’s 
Strategy 2014/17. This strategy reflects what 
children, young people, parents, carers and 
professionals across Trafford have told us 
and has been written with their views at the 
centre describing our ambition to improve 
the outcomes for children, young people and 
families across a range of areas.

Our focus for 2014/15

•  Continue to improve the health and 
wellbeing of our children and their families

•  Ensure that children have the best start 
in life through high quality learning and 
development

•  Support children in the most vulnerable 
groups to achieve their potential and have 
the best possible health outcomes

•  Close the gap in outcomes for children, 
young people and families based on their 
localities

•  We will look at the strategy every year 
to check how we are doing against the 
priorities and revise our ambitions or goals 
to reflect where we need to be.

920

P
age 57



The Strategic Housing Partnership is the 
lead partnership on the delivery of Better 
Homes in Trafford. 

Our vision 

Trafford’s residents will have access 
to appropriate housing in safe, secure 
neighbourhoods, improving their quality of 
life.

What we achieved in 2013/14

•  National Affordable Housing Program 
2013/14 unit completion stood at 187 units 
going into the final year of the program.

•  A Housing Strategy isbeing developed 
directly with partners in Trafford to 
deliver under three themes; Deliver (Safer 
and Secure Neighbourhoods), Develop 
(Economic and Housing Growth) and Grow 
(opportunities for residents).

•  The Trafford Homelessness Strategy has been 
produced. Its aim is to prevent homelessness 
wherever possible through the provision 
of appropriate advice and/or support to 
those at risk, and intervening at an early a 
stage as is practical. Efforts will be targeted 
at providing people with options to enable 
them to make informed choices and improve 
the quality of their lives. 

•  Assisted in creating a network of signposting 
and assistance, with our partners, for people 
impacted by Welfare Reform.

Project showcase: Shrewsbury Street 
Development

The development of the Old Trafford 
Community Centre on Shrewsbury Street is 
part of The Old Trafford Masterplan which aims 
to “create a vibrant, sustainable community, 
with quality housing, excellent environment, 
and good connections to employment 

opportunities together with improved retail 
and community facilities.”  The proposal is to 
create a vibrant community hub with state 
of the art health facilities and 80 Extra Care 
apartments.

Since October 2013 Trafford Housing Trust 
(THT) has been working with the Old Trafford 
Community to create plans for the new 
Shrewsbury Street Community and Health 
Development.  The Community have been 
involved throughout the process, helping to 
guide and influence the plans, with hundreds 
of people contributing, through drop in 
sessions, one to ones, by attending special 
visioning events and input through the Old 
Trafford and Stretford Locality Partnership. 
This input along with information gathered 
by a team of neighbourhood researchers who 
interviewed local residents to get their views 
on the proposals has given THT high quality 
feedback which has enabled them to develop 
the designs and guide the principles of the 
project. 

Local people have told THT that the building 
needs to be bright, attractive, flexible, 
accessible and affordable, values which have 
been included in the design and will be 
reflected in the management of the building.  
In addition local people highlighted the 
importance of a building that was warm and 
welcoming and to be multi functional, points 
which will guide the interior design and 
layout of the building. It is the community 
involvement in this development that makes 
it special, with local people being involved 
from the outset, it will be possible to create a 
development that will best service the needs 
of the local people that will use it the most. 

21

Better: Better Homes

Our focus for 2014/15

•  Drive forward the development 
of the new Housing Strategy with 
partners and developers 

•  Consult on and adopt the 
Prevention of Homelessness 
Strategy 

•  Work closely and collaborate with 
partners to look at site assembly 
issues in Trafford

•  Take advantage of government 
initiatives to encourage house 
building on brownfield sites and 
increase the flow of affordable 
housing in the borough.

922

P
age 58



The Environment Partnership is the lead 
partnership on the delivery of a Positive 
Environmental Impact in Trafford.

Our vision 

Trafford will be cleaner, greener and more 
sustainable.

What we achieved in 2013/14

•  New cycle parking has been installed at 
three schools, and a new scooter pod is 
being installed at a fourth school.

•  Over 200 families have changed their 
behaviour following their involvement in 
the sustainable School Transport project in 
2013/14. Families have, variously, moved 
from lone car use to walking, cycling, 
scooting or car sharing.

•  Successfully engaged with the Urmston 
and Partington Locality Partnership on 
countryside management issues at Urmston 
Meadows and Mersey Valley areas and 
successfully obtained a grant of £19,000 from 
the Urmston Community Panel to implement 
an access project there. 

•  Launched the #BeResponsible dog fouling 
campaign.

•  The phased introduction of a weekly food 
waste recycling service in 2013/14 has 
increased overall recycling rates in Trafford to 
above 60% saving over £1m to the Council.

Project showcase: Eco Streets

Eco Streets ran for two years in Trafford and 
successfully supported 13 groups and schools 
to deliver a range of sustainability projects. 
Examples of projects are: 

•  Improving Davyhulmes Environmental 
Awareness (IDEA) who ran cooking courses 

to encourage people to learn to cook and 
enhance their skills and knowledge so that 
they waste less food. 

•  Gorse Hill Action Group used their Eco 
Streets grant to fund ‘Project Buzz’ – a project 
aimed at creating a ‘hive of activity’ within 
Gorse Hill Park including an orchard and new 
planting areas that would encourage bees to 
the area. 

•  St Margaret Ward Primary in Sale West used 
their grant to restart the Eco Warriors group 
within the School and install compost bins 
and energy monitors at school to educate 
the children about saving energy and 
wasting less.

Residents were supported through the 
grant application and management process 
and received free training on Developing 
a Sustainable Project, Making a Successful 
Funding Application, Managing Funding 
and Strong Roots: Building a Successful Food 
Growing Project. 

Trafford residents also benefitted from a free 
one day sustainability conference at Trafford 
Ecology Park – Future Foundations: The Good 
Life for the 21st Century. The Conference 
offered workshops on fruit tree grafting and 
pruning, mushroom growing, seed sowing, 
composting and a talk about the Incredible 
Edible initiative. People were encouraged 
to travel using sustainable transport and 
everyone shared a low carbon vegetarian 
lunch. Residents also came together on 
Monday 28th April at Bean and Brush Art Café 
in Sale to celebrate what they had achieved 
during the two year programme. 

23

Greener: Positive Environmental Impact Feedback from the scheme from 
local people was excellent and 
highlighted the high quality and 
sustainable use of partnership 
funds and community engagement 
in Trafford, facilitated by the 
Environment Partnership and 
delivered by our close partners 
Groundwork. 

Our focus for 2014/15

•  Focus on the further 
implementation of the Trafford 
Countryside Management 
Partnership.

•  Launch the Trafford 2014-17 
Environment Strategy.

•  Encourage take up of the Green 
Deal and in Trafford and promote 
energy efficiency.

• Build on successful recycling 
campaigns to further increase 
recycling rates.

• Maintain the environment and 
promote social responsibility.

•  Work closely and collaborate with 
partners to look at site assembly 
issues in Trafford

•  Take advantage of government 
initiatives to encourage house 
building on brownfield sites and 
increase the flow of affordable 
housing in the borough.

924

P
age 59



The Health and Wellbeing Board is the lead 
partnership on the delivery of improving 
health and wellbeing in Trafford.

Our vision 

Public health is everyone’s business. We will 
reduce health inequalities through working 
with communities and residents to improve 
opportunities for adults and children

What we achieved in 2013/14

•  Revised and published the Children and 
Young People sections of the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (JSNA) on the InfoTrafford 
web portal. 

•  Trafford Council signed up to the Local 
Government Declaration on Tobacco Control. 

•  Successfully delivered on the target for NHS 
Health Checks for our local residents.  

•  Achieve on maintaining and improving 
breastfeeding rates to improve maternal and 
child health to give children the best start in 
life. 

•  Developed plans to tackle childhood obesity 
in three of the Locality Partnerships. 

•  The progression of a further two 
dementia friendly communities focusing 
on Stretford Mall and Hale Town Centre 
has gained a partnership approach and 
was complimented by the launch of the 
dementia friendly kite mark in June 2014.

8

Healthier: Health and Improved Quality of Life for All  Project showcase

Old Trafford Asian community are more 
comfortable using Skype technology to keep 
in touch with international relatives. This is an 
appropriate tool with this group to use expand 
the Skype Counselling pilot and develop it 
further. 

Sale West residents suggested activities such 
as keep fit, yoga, dance and relaxation/stress 
therapies to help improve their wellbeing. The 
activities cater for all ages including the keep fit 
session for over 60. The yoga class is attended 
by a range of people and is also a regular 
programme for a group of adults with Downs 
Syndrome.  

26

Our focus for 2014/15

We will support a reduction in health 
inequalities by maintaining and 
improving service quality through 
the development of an integrated 
approach with Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group, Trafford 
Council, Locality Partnerships, Public 
Health England, Trafford’s primary 
care practices and other key partner 
organisations such as housing, 
voluntary third sector in the Borough. 

This integrated approach will support 
health and social care, children and 
young people services, primary care 
and other key stakeholders to:

•  Promote individual lifestyle changes 
by offering a choice of wellbeing 
services (e.g. NHS Health Checks, 
sexual health services, drugs and 
alcohol advice);

•  Engage with and encourage 
communities which are less likely to 
access services;

•  Ensure patients are engaged and 
make an informed decision about 
participation in national screening 
programmes, and ensure inequalities 
are addressed;

•  Promote wellbeing by treating 
patients and service users holistically 
in terms of mental and physical 
illness;

•  Promote effective self-management 
for people with long-term conditions

25

P
age 60



The Strategic Sport and Physical Activity 
Partnership is the lead partnership on the 
delivery of increasing sport and physical 
activity.

Our vision 

Trafford will have the most active population 
in Greater Manchester and sport and physical 
activity will contribute to the reduction of 
health inequalities

What we achieved in 2013/14

• The Sport and Physical Activity Partnership 
delivered a 100 day plan within its first 100 
days. The Partnership has been working with 
partners to support and produce a wide 
range of  innovative funding applications 
which it is hoped will bring in excess of 
£1million into the Borough to deliver a 
range of projects which aim to increase 
participation.

• There has already been a good increase in 
participation. Currently 41.1% of residents 
participate in sport for at least 30 minutes at 
least once a week, compared to 38.6% from 
the previous year (2011/12). This is above the 
average in England (35.7%), the North West 
(35.8%) and the Greater Manchester County 
Sports Partnership area (36.1%) (Sport 
England’s Active People Survey 2012/13). 

• In contrast we know that 24.75% of residents 
are inactive, and this inactivity cost us 
£16,226,251(the overall cost of inactivity per 
100,000 people to each local authority per 
year).

• It is estimated that the total direct economic 
value of sport to Trafford is £106.4m (based 
on an indicative annual value).

• We surveyed our residents to investigate 
sport and physical activity behaviours. The 
results are giving us a better picture of what 
provision is needed in the borough and how 
we can direct our resources in the best way 
possible. 

• Partners have developed innovative projects 
to increase participation in sport and 
physical activity. Flixton Girls School working 
with Mad Fitness who specialise in fitness 
in schools, have been nationally recognised 
for good practice in increasing participation 
amongst its girls through the development 
of Fitness Fridays - on one Friday each 
month, all staff and students go into school 
in sports kit and the day includes a variety of 
sessions covering everything from aerobics, 
zumba, pilates, yoga and body combat. The 
academic record has improved as a result 
of engaging pupils in sport and physical 
activity. This pioneering project is supported 
by Liverpool John Moores University.

Healthier: Increased sport and physical activity Project showcase: Sporting Foundations for 
Life

Sporting Foundations for Life (SF4L) is a needs-
led, multisport community engagement 
programme, working to increase the once-
a-week participation of 14-25 year-olds.  
Lancashire County Cricket Club Foundation 
and Salford Red Devils Foundation are working 
alongside Trafford Housing Trust and other 
partners on this new project.

SF4L Project targets for 2014-15 include:

• Establishing and sustaining ten Activation 
Hubs across the Borough, two in each of 
Trafford Housing Trust’s Panel areas.

• Working alongside key stakeholders, such as 
the Youth Service and Greater Manchester 
Police, to develop activity which addresses 
the specific need of each community.

• Using specialist products and non-
mainstream sports, such as free running 
and military fitness style activity, to engage 
young people.

• Ensuring young people have an opportunity 
to shape the project by linking with existing 
Youth Panels and similar groups 

• Producing a training course alongside 
Trafford College for volunteers and staff 
members. This will sit on the National 
Qualifications Framework and can be used as 
an entry to employment opportunity.

Our focus for 2014/15

• Increase participation in 1 x 30 minutes per 
week sport and physical activity. 

• Deliver a major programme to encourage 
participation in the workplace.

• Increase volunteering opportunities in sport 
and physical activity.

• Support links between school sport and 
sport in the community.

92827

P
age 61



The Trafford Community Covenant encourages support for the Armed Forces community 
working and residing in Trafford. The Trafford Armed Forces Community Covenant Partnership 
brings together partners and the military to coordinate and implement support across Trafford, 
with a programme of activities which includes supporting reservists, targeting health, housing 
and schooling, and providing future support to wounded, injured and sick personnel and their 
families. In the forthcoming year Trafford Council will to sign the Corporate Covenant, as an 
employer, to further embed our commitment to the armed forces in Trafford by working closely 
with local businesses to support the Armed Forces and enhance opportunities for reservists. 

Recent work has involved our local unit, 207 Field Hospital delivering HeartStart training with 
our partner organisations around the borough, including the Council, with over 200 people 
being trained in life saving techniques.

8

Armed Forces Community Covenant Partnership

9

The Community Covenant Partnership is working in partnership with IWM North (part of 
Imperial War Museums) and has secured a grant of over £50,000 from the Ministry of Defence for 
the inspirational ‘Serving Stories’ project. ‘Serving Stories’ will enable ex-forces personnel to share 
their stories through three interlinked project activities: an engagement programme targeting 
schools and youth groups; a short film resource and public engagement events across Trafford 
and Greater Manchester. 

Serving Stories Project

9 3029

P
age 62



Trafford Partnership Website
The Trafford Partnership website provides comprehensive and up to date 
information on the Trafford Partnership including news, events and reports.
www.traffordpartnership.org

Twitter
You can now follow the Partnership on @TPAction 

Trafford Partnership Events
If you are interested in attending future events and conferences please call 0161 
912 1173 or e-mail partnershipsteam@trafford.gov.uk and we will add you to the 
mailing list.

Voluntary Sector Grants
If you are interested in receiving information about support for voluntary and 
community groups please visit www.thrivetrafford.org.uk 

Community Partnerships
If you are interested in getting involved in your community, you can join your local 
community partnership or get involved in a neighbourhood forum. For further 
information please e-mail partnershipsteam@trafford.gov.uk 

Contact Details and Enquiries

Partnership and Communities Team
First Floor Extension
Trafford Town Hall
Talbot Road
Stretford
Manchester 
M32 0TH

E-mail:  partnershipsteam@trafford.gov.uk
Tel:  0161 912 1173

31

How to get involved

32

P
age 63



Partnerships and Communities Team
First Floor Extension

Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road
Stretford, Manchester M32 0TH

© 2014 Trafford Council
Email partnershipsteam@trafford.gov.uk

Telephone 0161 912 1173
www.traffordpartnership.org
www.Twitter.com/TPAction 

www.traffordpartnership.org
Page 64


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	4 ACTION LOG
	9 EARLY YEARS UPDATE
	10 TRAFFORD SEXUAL HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT
	11 PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT
	12 PROVISIONAL HEALTH & WELLBEING MEETING DATES 2015/16
	15 TRAFFORD PARTNERSHIP UPDATE
	Item 15 - Trafford Partnership Update - Report


